
NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
 

NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 
 
 

 
School Committee Business Meeting 

6:30PM 
 
 
 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 
 

 

 
 

SC Business Meeting Agenda January 21, 2025 
SC Business Meeting Agenda Notes January 21, 2025 
SC Warrant January 21, 2025 
SC Business Meeting Minutes January 6, 2025 
Superintendent’s Report 
School Committee Retreat Notes 
 



  Newburyport Public Schools 
 

School Committee Business Meeting  
 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025     at 6:30PM 
 

Senior/Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 

The Mission of the Newburyport Public Schools, the port where tradition and innovation converge, is to ensure each student achieves 
intellectual and personal excellence and is equipped for life experiences through a system distinguished by students, staff, and 
community who: - practice kindness and perseverance - celebrate each unique individual - value creativity; experiential, rigorous 
educational opportunities; scholarly pursuits; and life-long learning - provide the nurturing environments for emotional, social, and 
physical growth - understand and embrace their role as global citizens. 
 
Please note: The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all 
items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. The 
meeting will be televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 & streamed via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/. 
 
School Committee Business Meeting Agenda 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. *Consent Agenda (Warrant and 1/6/2025 Minutes) – possible Vote 
 
4. Student Representative Report 
 
5. Athletic Director Hiring Process Update 
 
6. MSBA Accelerated Repair Program Update 
 
7. Playful Learning Grant 
 
8. Subcommittee Updates 

a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan 
b. Policy Subcommittee – Kathleen Shaw 
c. Communications Subcommittee – Sarah Hall 
d. Teaching & Learning Subcommittee – Breanna Higgins 
e. Superintendent Evaluation Subcommittee – Mayor Sean Reardon 

 
9. Superintendent’s Report 
 
10. Follow-up:  a. Hybrid Meetings – Juliet Walker 

b. School Committee Retreat Notes – Juliet Walker 
 

 
 

11. New Business 
 
 
 
 

Adjournment          *Possible Vote 

** The School Committee reserves the right to call executive session, as provided under Chapter 30A, Section 21(a)(2), of the General 
Laws to discuss strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations, collective bargaining and/or potential litigation.  

https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/


Newburyport Public Schools 
 

School Committee Business Meeting  

Tuesday, January 21, 2025     at 6:30PM 
 

Senior/Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 
 

AGENDA NOTES 
 

The listing of matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in 
fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.  The meeting will be 
televised locally live on Comcast Channel 9 or stream via https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/.  
 

School Committee Business Meeting Agenda 
3. Consent Agenda (Warrant & minutes 1-6-2025) – possible Vote 
 
 
4. Student Representative Report:  NHS student representative will provide the report. 
 
 
5. Athletic Director Hiring Process Update:  Human Resources Director Pam Kealey will provide a 

summary of the hiring process, status of the interview process and key dates. 
 
 

6. MSBA Accelerated Repair Program Update:   Superintendent Sean Gallagher and Facilities Director 
James McSweeney will discuss the status and important next steps in MSBA’s Accelerated Repair 
program for the potential roof replacement projects at the High School and Nock/Molin schools. 

 
 
7. Playful Learning Grant:  NPS is pleased to share they’ve been awarded a $175,000 grant from the Dept. 

of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) for the development of playful learning at the 
Francis T. Bresnahan Elementary School.  Assistant Superintendent Lisa Furlong will provide some 
details on the grant goals and implantation plan. 

 
 
8. Subcommittee Updates 

a. Finance Subcommittee – Brian Callahan 
b. Policy Subcommittee –Kathleen Shaw 
c. Communications Subcommittee – Sarah Hall 
d. Teaching & Learning Subcommittee – Breanna Higgins 
e. Superintendent Evaluation Subcommittee – Mayor Sean Reardon 

 
9. Superintendent’s Report:  Cell Phone Use In Schools Update, Contract Negotiations Status, and NHS 

Media Lab Update 
 

10. Follow-up:    a.  Hybrid Meetings – Juliet Walker 
    b.  School Committee Retreat Notes – Juliet Walker 

 
 
11. New Business 

 
 

 
FYI: Upcoming Dates:        Martin Luther King Day -  Monday, January 20 – closed  

 Communications Subcommittee meeting: Thursday, January 23 @ 6:30PM 
 Nock School Council meeting: Friday, January 24 @ 9:15AM 
 Bresnahan School Council meeting: Tuesday, January 28 @ 8:10AM 
 School Committee Business meeting: Monday, February 3 @ 6:30PM 
 NHS School Council meeting: Tuesday, February 4 @ 5:00PM 
 Policy Subcommittee meeting: Monday, February 10 @ 7:00PM 

 

*Possible Vote 

https://ncmhub.org/share/channel-9/




1 | P a g e  

NEWBURYPORT SCHOOL COMMITTEE BUSINESS MEETING 

Senior/Community Center, 331 High Street, Newburyport, MA 01950 

 

Monday, January 6, 2025 
Organizational Meeting 

 
Present: Mayor Sean Reardon, Sarah Hall, Juliet Walker, Kathleen Shaw, Brian Callahan, 

  and Breanna Higgins; (Andy Boger arrived late) 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
Mayor Sean Reardon called the School Committee Organizational meeting of the Newburyport 
School Committee to order at 6:30 PM.  Roll call found all members present except Andy Boger 
(arrived 6:32PM).  All those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
VIVA-VOCE VOTE FOR 2025 VICE-CHAIR 
Mayor Reardon called for nominations for the 2025 Vice-Chair.  Sarah Hall nominated Juliet Walker 
as the 2025 Vice-Chair.  
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Sarah Hall and seconded by Brian Callahan it was 
 VOTED: to elect Juliet Walker as the 2025 Vice-Chair. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Mayor Reardon Yes 
Sarah Hall  Yes 
Andrew Boger  Yes 
Brian Callahan Yes 
Breanna Higgins Yes 
Kathleen Shaw Yes 
Juliet Walker  Yes 
 
Motion Passed Unanimously 
Juliet Walker was elected as the 2025 Vice-Chair. 
 
 
School Committee Acknowledgement - Policies BCA & BCC-BCD 
Members signed the acknowledgement form indicating they have received and reviewed both the 
School Committee Member Ethics Policy (BCD) and School Committee Operating Principles & Norms 
of Interaction Policy (BCC-BCD). 
 
2025 Subcommittee Assignments 
Mayor Reardon read the assignments for the 2025 Subcommittees. 
 
Finance 
Brian Callahan - Chair 
Juliet Walker 
Andy Boger 



2 | P a g e  

Policy 
Kathleen Shaw - Chair 
Juliet Walker 
Breanna Higgins 
 
Communications 
Sarah Hall – Chair 
Andy Boger 
Brian Callahan 
 
Teaching & Learning 
Breanna Higgins - Chair 
Kathleen Shaw 
Sarah Hall 
 
Superintendent Evaluation 
Mayor Sean Reardon 
 
Newburyport Education Foundation - Brian Callahan (appointed by NEF) 
SEPAC – Kathleen Shaw 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion: 
On a motion by Sarah Hall and seconded by Juliet Walker it was 
 VOTED: to adjourn the Organizational Meeting of the School Committee  
   at 6:36 PM. 
Motion Passed Unanimously 
 

Business Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
Mayor Sean Reardon called the School Committee Business meeting of the Newburyport School 
Committee to order at 6:37 PM. At this point in the meeting, Juliet Walker took over. 
 
Public Comments 
Dan Eyink, 36R Spofford Street – Fluoride  (article attached) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Warrants 
Motion: 
On a motion by Brian Callahan and seconded by Mayor Reardon it was  
 VOTED: to approve, receive and forward to the City Auditor for payment the  
   following Warrant: 

   Warrant 8139   $273,160.16 

Motion Passed 
 



3 | P a g e  

Minutes 

Motion: 
On a motion by Mayor Reardon and seconded by Sarah Hall it was 

VOTED: to accept the minutes of the December 18, 2024 School Committee Business 
meeting with one correction (page 3 – retreat time is 10AM – 2PM). 

Motion Passed 
 
 
Student Representative Report   
Maddie Jackman presented the student report that included Clipper Courses at the Bresnahan, 
Career Exploration Speaker Series at the Nock, and NHS musicians performing at a concert in 
Lexington. 
 
FY26 Preliminary Expense Projections 

Superintendent Gallagher discussed areas that typically drive budget increases each year. The 
state’s budget schedule was reviewed, as well as district enrollments from 2018 thru 2025. Budget 
increases are anticipated in the following 6 areas:  contractual increases, COLA, non-personal, 
special education, transportation and utilities/maintenance.  

 
 
SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 

Finance Subcommittee 
Brian Callahan reported the committee will meet on January 16th at a time to be determined. 
 
Policy Subcommittee 
Juliet Walker reported they did not meet last month.  She will cancel the January 13th meeting and 
reconvene in February. 
 
Communications Subcommittee 
Andy Boger stated they didn’t hold a meeting in December. The next meeting will be January 23rd. 
 
 
Superintendent’s Report 

Business Manager Update:  Superintendent Sean Gallagher stated three applicants have been 
received, and the district will continue to advertise the position on School Spring and MASBO. 
 
Athletic Director Search Update:  The screening committee met last week and have selected eight 
candidates to interview.  Three candidates will be moved forward to participate in the community 
forum on January 16. 
 
District’s Music Program:  Many more students are participating in music/drama programs throughout 
the district. The Superintendent explained various changes that were made. Staff now work together 
across the district rather than just school-based. Band, chorus and orchestra is now available to Molin 
students during the school day. Schedules were restructured at the Nock, and now more courses are 
being offered to grades 6-7-8. The NHS/Nock bands have coordinated in-school rehearsal times. 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  

Follow-up 
SEPAC: Kathleen Shaw said they plan to have three or four more meetings.  The recent joint meeting 
with Amesbury was very good.  No specific date has been set yet for the next meeting. 
 
NEF Update: Brian Callahan reported they haven’t met since November, and believes the next 
meeting is January 22. 
 
Hybrid Meetings:  Brian Callahan has the new equipment.  Juliet Walker can help run a test with 
Superintendent Gallagher before the next meeting. 
 
 

New Business 
 Mayor Sean Reardon stated the State of the City will be held at 7PM on February 26th. 
 Today the Mayor launched the 3rd annual Public & Community Service Awards.  In addition, he 

announced a new award in honor of Reverend Helen Murgida. 
 Mayor Sean Reardon attended a teacher contract negotiations meeting at Whittier today. In the 

past, Tracy Blais, Newbury Town Manager, has represented the 11 communities.  It is currently 
undecided who will be the representative in the upcoming negotiations.  The next meeting is 
Monday (January 13th). 

 Juliet Walker reminded all members the SC Retreat will be 10AM-2PM, Saturday, 1/11/25.  
Kathleen Shaw asked members to stay afterwards to talk about the Talent Show. 

 Andy Boger suggested an update at the next meeting regarding Cell Phone Use. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion: 

On a motion by Mayor Reardon and seconded by Brian Callahan it was 
VOTED: to adjourn the Business meeting of the Newburyport School Committee at 7:15PM. 

Motion Passed 
 









Student Report for School Committee January 6, 2025 

Submitted by:  Madeleine Jackman 

Location: Senior Center 

Bresnahan News: 

We are about to begin our second session of Clipper Courses and are excited to offer origami, green 
team, art, mindfulness, typing and more! 

Staff are looking forward to the professional development day. After the district sessions on Portrait of 
a Graduate, Bresnahan staff Stacey Boucher, Haley Budden, Jill Mailloux and Julie Doyle will provide 
professional development on blended learning and how it can be utilized in the elementary setting. 

Molin News:  Nothing Submitted 

Nock News: 

The Nock 8th grade team will be kicking off the January Career Exploration Speaker Series on 
Thursday. This initiative is a key component of our School Improvement Plan and aligns with the 
strategic goals around our Portrait of a Graduate. 

The speaker series offers students a unique opportunity to meet professionals from a wide range of 
fields. They will learn not only about various careers but also about the personal journeys that these 
professionals have taken to reach their current roles. Our speakers will also provide valuable advice to 
our students as they consider their future educational paths and careers, particularly as they prepare 
to transition into high school. This series is a wonderful way to enhance our "exploration" efforts during 
the middle school years. 

Our lineup of speakers includes business owners, an Army Captain who is an architect, individuals 
working in the arts, finance, marketing, medical fields, software development, and much more. The 
diversity of careers being represented will certainly help broaden our students' perspectives and 
inspire them as they start to think about their future aspirations. 

In addition to the speaker series, we are also finalizing plans for Year 3 of our college tour initiative. 
We are tentatively scheduled to visit several colleges at the end of March, with more details to follow 
soon. 

High School News: 

This Saturday the following NHS musicians will join hundreds of the best student musicians from our 
corner of Massachusetts in the Northeastern senior district band, orchestra, jazz band, and chorus, at 
a concert in Lexington: Cedar Schumacher, Josh Burrell, Evan Lagueux, Max Piotrowski, and Sam 
Parr. These students represent the best of the Newburyport music program, and the school district as 
a whole. Congratulations to them from all of us, their parents, the NHS administration, and their music 
teachers. 



Cell Phone Use In Schools:
Since the beginning of the school year, we have been actively addressing cell phone 
use across our schools. We have met with the parent / guardian group (Heads Up 
Phones Down) regarding cell phone use and have shared messages with families, and 
collaborated with students to ensure clarity and consistency regarding expectations.

In our elementary and middle schools, we’ve seen a collective effort in maintaining 
minimal to no cell phone use during the school day.  (Policy is “away for the day”) 
Students have shown great awareness of the expectations, and staff have worked 
diligently to reinforce these practices.

As we know at the high school level, cell phone use presents different challenges. Both 
Administrators and staff have made a concerted effort to observe and address cell 
phone use during classroom time, ensuring it does not interfere with learning. 

Principal Wulf consistently informs the high school community regarding cell phone 
use.  He also highlights the efforts of both his School Council and Student Council 
around this issue.
Summary of high school related cell phone use activities thus far:

• Multiple faculty meetings and dialogs around cell phone / device use
• During the first quarter, the high school centered on anchor texts aimed at

helping students engage in dialogue around the addictive nature of cell phones, 
while thinking through their own strategies to self-regulate around the device. 
(book Accountable by Dashka Slater) 

• In late November, Atny. Katie Greer spent the day with Juniors in small groups to
process the dangers of cell phones and the access to social media. 

• The High School continues to ban cell phones during instructional time.  All
students are expected to place phones in bins.  This allows the staff to identify 
and intervene with students who need greater support on managing their use of 
the phone when they cannot comply. 

• Principal Wulf recently addressed the school about their mission to teach self-
regulation through enforcing the cell phone policy during instructional time. 

• After the semester exam period, NHS will have scheduled class assemblies to
refocus on school practices.  During the grade 9 and 10 assemblies, some 
juniors and seniors from the Student Council will talk about their experience 
during the dialogues earlier in the year to reinforce the higher level skill of self-
regulation.  (Note this idea was sparked from the School Council, as well as the 
feedback provided when Principal Wulf presented an update to the School 
Committee in the late fall.) 

• Principal Wulf and some of the high school students will present at the February
3rd School Committee on next steps. 

Superintendent's Report
School Committee January 21, 2025



• Efforts are paying off - see attached email from a high school teacher

Contract Negotiations

We are currently negotiating 3 collective bargaining agreements with all Newburyport 
Public School employees.  To date, we have spent over 50 hours negotiating with all 
three union organizations that cover approximately 375 employees.

NTA Union = 268 members
IA Union = 54 members
AFSCME Union = 53 Members

Contract Negotiations - NTA
(7/29) Conference Call IBB Mediator  (Interest Based Bargaining)
(8/13) Central Office meeting with IBB Mediator
(8/14) NTA / Management agreement to use IBB & IBB Mediator
(9/24) IBB training
(10/1) Management Meeting
(10/8) NTA Negotiations
(10/15) Management Meeting
(10/24) NTA Negotiations
(10/30) NTA Negotiations
(11/19) NTA Negotiations
(12/2) Management Meeting
(12/4) NTA Negotiations
(12/19) NTA Negotiations
(1/13) NTA Negotiations
(1/27) NTA Negotiations  (next scheduled meeting)

Contract Negotiations - Instructional Assistants

(9/18) IA / Management agreement to use IBB & IBB Mediator
(10/18) Management / IA union meeting
(12/9)  IA IBB Training
(12/16) Management Meeting
(1/14) IA Negotiations
(1/25) IA Negotiations (next scheduled meeting)

Contract Negotiations - AFSCME 
(12/11) Management / AFSCME Shared Interests Meeting
TBD - Negotiations meeting dates



NHS - Media Lab Update 

• Final design plans have been made, and we are currently working on Technology
Equipment lists and estimated pricing.

• Received Quotes for Audio / Visual Equipment
• Received Quotes for Lighting
• Changes in project:  James McSweeney will serve as the General Contractor and will

be able to utilize local vendors which will be a significant cost savings, and we will be 
able to expedite the project by 3-4 weeks.

• Mr. McSweeney is working on the demolition plan. The majority of the demolition plan
we will use our maintenance staff. James is currently developing the construction 
schedule with the architects.  I will update the School Committee at the February 3rd 
meeting.

• This timeline would allow us to get students in the space for the last 8 weeks of the
school year.





 Notes from School Committee Retreat 
 January 14, 2025 

 Review of School Committee Operating Principles and Norms of Interaction 

 Item  What is SC 
 doing well? 

 What needs 
 work? 

 Notes 

 1. Represent the needs and interests of all students in the district, striving to 
 represent common interests rather than  factions. We will make decisions that are 
 best for students in all cases: all means all. 

 3 

 2. Exercise leadership in vision, planning, policy making, evaluation, and advocacy 
 on behalf of the students and district, not  in managing the day-to-day operations of 
 the district. 

 1  1 

 3. We will communicate positively about other school committee members, staff, 
 and the system. As advocates for  Newburyport Public Schools and public 
 education, we readily accept our roles promoting support for public education  and 
 spreading the news of our success. 

 2 

 4. Conduct its business through a set agenda. Emerging items will be addressed in 
 subsequent meetings through agenda  items, with the exception of items that are 
 time sensitive or require urgent attention. 
 5. Provide full disclosure. Each member will provide input, encouragement, express 
 concerns and positions rather than  withhold information from other members. 
 When a school committee member feels that there has not been full  disclosure, an 
 objective process for revisiting the issue will be used. 
 6. Maintain an open environment where each member is empowered to freely 
 express opinions, concerns, and ideas.  School committee members will engage in 
 active listening to clarify and restate discussions in order to strive for full 
 understanding. We will provide continuing education opportunities and support to 
 each other, striving to build trusting  relationships. 

 6 

 7. Keep an open mind and accept that they can change their opinions by 
 recognizing that they are not locked into their  initial stated positions.  1  1 

 8. Make decisions on information and not on personalities. School committee 
 members will act with the best information  available at the time considering data, 
 the superintendent’s recommendations, proposals, and suggestions. School 
 committee members will strive to make the best decisions at the time, without 
 waiting for the perfect decision. 

 Page  1 



 Item  What is SC 
 doing well? 

 What needs 
 work? 

 Notes 

 9. Debate the issues, not one another. The school committee will engage in critical 
 and creative thinking, expecting all  school committee members to freely offer 
 differing points of view as part of the discussion, prior to making a school 
 committee decision. 

 1  2 

 10. Be clear about, and stay true to, the role of the school committee. Not take 
 unilateral action. A committee member’s  authority is derived through the majority of 
 the school committee acting as a whole during an open public meeting. We  will 
 reach decisions by consensus, and individual members will publicly abide by those 
 decisions, speaking with one  voice, once a vote is taken. We will recognize a single 
 official “voice” of the school committee. 

 1 

 11. Attend meetings on time and well prepared to discuss issues on the agenda, 
 and will be prepared to make decisions,  striving for efficient decision making.  1  1 

 12. Strive to have no surprises for the committee or superintendent. Surprises will 
 be the exception. All members will  provide and receive the same information in a 
 timely manner. 

 2 

 13. Respect all persons presenting to the school committee.  1 

 14. Follow the chain of command and direct others to do the same. Personnel 
 complaints and concerns will be directed to  the superintendent. 
 15. Review and revise operating principles, as needed, as part of the school 
 committee’s self-evaluation. 
 16. Recognize that all communications created and received to our district email 
 accounts are public documents, unless a  specific statutory exemption applies. 
 17. Refrain from reading or sending electronic communications, and remain off of all 
 social media platforms during  meetings, in the interest of transparency.  Review, seems 

 like this could be 
 more general 

 Page  2 



 Summary of School Committee Discussion of Interim Goals for January to June 2025 

 Description  Recommended Action  Desired Outcome 

 Athletic fees: 
 ●  Review fee structure 
 ●  Review use of fee 

 revenue 
 ●  Consider possible fee 

 reduction and impact on 
 budget 

 Finance Subcommittee to review 
 and discuss with staff and 
 recommend action to School 
 Committee 

 School Committee vote on 
 athletic fees for upcoming 
 school year 

 Undertake detailed review of 
 budget line items earlier in 
 budget development process 

 Finance Subcommittee to work 
 with Superintendent and 
 business management 
 consultant 

 Report out from Finance 
 Subcommittee on budget line 
 item review as part of budget 
 process 

 Re-establish regular line of 
 communication with City Council 

 Communications Subcommittee 
 to coordinate with City Council 
 President and General Gov’t 
 committee 

 Report outs from 
 Communications Subcommittee 

 Promote community support for 
 education 

 Communications Subcommittee 
 to discuss and identify ways to 
 improve communication with 
 community at large 

 Report outs from 
 Communications Subcommittee 

 Cell phone use in schools  Presentation from staff on 
 progress to date and discussion 
 at SC meeting; solicit guardian, 
 teacher, and student input 

 School Committee to clarify 
 position and (if appropriate) 
 consider district-wide policy 
 regarding cell phone use in 
 schools 

 Focus on creating a  supportive 
 school learning environment for 
 all students 

 Collaborate with Education 
 Commonwealth Project to 
 implement Quality Measures 
 framework, including survey of 
 guardians and students 

 Report out from ECP 

 Establish framework for 
 measuring academic progress in 
 response to student assessment 
 data 

 Teaching and Learning 
 Subcommittee to review and 
 discuss with staff 

 Report out from Teaching and 
 Learning Subcommittee 

 Develop School Committee 
 handbook 

 Vice Chair to work with 
 Superintendent to compile 
 handbook 

 Prepare handbook for 
 2026/2027 school year 

 Develop measurable goals for 
 School Improvement Plans 

 Teaching and Learning 
 Subcommittee to review and 
 discuss with staff with input from 
 School Councils 

 Report out from Teaching and 
 Learning Subcommittee 

 Page  3 


	1-21-2025 cover sheet
	1-21-2025 agenda (1)
	1-21-2025 agenda notes (2)
	Warrant Jan 21 2025
	2025-01-06 SC minutes final
	Jan 6 2025 SC  minutes
	Fluoride article_redacted email
	1-6 student Rep Notes

	Superintendent's report
	teacher email postive Cell PHone
	SC Notes from January 2025 Retreat

